
BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS 
 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
 

    Meeting: Wednesday, 11th January, 2023 
       at 2.00 pm (Committee Room No. 4) 
 

A G E N D A 
 

PART ONE 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members.   
 

 

2.   Urgent Items 
 
To deal with any items which the Chair considers to be of an urgent 
nature.  
 

 

3.   Delegations 
 
To receive notice from Members who may wish to move any 
delegated matter non-delegated and which will be decided by a 
majority of Members present and voting at the meeting. 
 

 

4.   Admission of Public and Press 
 
To consider whether the public and press should be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the agenda. 
 

 

5.   Declarations of Interest 
 
To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal 
offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting). 
 
Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 
the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other interests.   
 

 

6.   Minutes 
 
To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 14th December, 2022 
 
 

5 - 8 



 

 
7.   Public Participation 

 
Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make 
representations or present a deputation or petition at this meeting 
should apply to do so by no later than 5pm two working days before 
the meeting.  Information on how make an application can be 
obtained by viewing the Council’s website www.barrowbc.go.uk or by 
contacting the Democratic Services Team at 
jwhuck@barrowbc.gov.uk or by telephone on 07825206525. 
 
(1) Questions and Representations 

To receive any questions or representations which have been 
received from members of the public. 

 
(2) Deputations and Petitions 

To receive any deputations or petitions which have been 
received from members of the public. 

 
 

 

FOR DECISION  
 

 

(D) 8.   Council Finances Quarter 2 2022-2023   
 

To consider the Council Finances Quarter 2 2022-2023. 

 

9 - 16 

(D) 9.   Risk Management   
 

To consider the Risk Management Policy and Risk Registers. 
 

17 - 32 

(D) 10.   Memorial Bench Policy   
 

To consider the Memorial Bench Policy. 
 

33 - 42 

 
PART TWO  
 

 

(D) 11.   Options for Future Stray Dog Service  
 

To consider the proposals for Future Stray Dog Service. 
 

NOT FOR PUBLICATION BY VIRTUE OF PARAGRAPHS 2 & 4 OF 
PART ONE OF SCHEDULE 12A OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 

1972 AND ACCESS TO INFORMATION (VARIATION) ORDER 2006 

 
 

43 - 52 

NOTE  (D) – Delegated 
  (R) – For Referral to Council 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.barrowbc.go.uk/
mailto:jwhuck@barrowbc.gov.uk


 

 
 
 
Membership of Committee 
 
Councillors Brook (Chairman) 

Roberts (Vice-Chair) 
Barlow 
Biggins 
Burley 
Hamilton 
McClure 
Maddox 
Morgan 
Pemberton 
Shirley 
Wall 
 

 
For queries regarding this agenda, please contact: 
 

 Jon Huck 
Democratic and Electoral Services Manager 
01229 876312 
jwhuck@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 
Published: Tuesday, 3 January 2023 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

 
Meeting: Wednesday 14th December, 2022  
at 2.00 pm. (Committee Room No. 4) 
 

PRESENT:- Councillors Brook (Chairman), Biggins, Hamilton, Maddox, Morgan, 
Pemberton, Roberts, Shirley (Minute No. 86 only) and Wall. 
 
Officers Present:- David Parr (Interim Head of Paid Service), Sue Roberts (Director of 
Resources), Debbie Storr (Head of Legal and Governance), David Haughian (Capital 
Programme Manager) (Minute Nos. 79 - 85 only), Graham Barker (Head of Public 
Protection) (Minute No. 86 only) and Sandra Kemsley (Democratic Services Officer). 
 
79 – Apologies for Absence 
 
An apology for absence had been received from Councillor Barlow. 
 
80 – The Local Government Act 1972 as amended by the Local Government 

(Access to Information) Act 1985 and Access to Information (Variation) 
Order 2006  

 
Discussion arising hereon it was:-  
 
RESOLVED:- That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the 
public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on 
the grounds that it involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
Paragraphs 2 and 4 (Minute No. 86) of Part One of Schedule 12A of the said Act. 
 
81 – Declarations of Interest 
 
Councillor Hamilton declared Councillor Hamilton declared an Other Registrable 
Interest in Agenda Item 11 - Barrow Levelling Up Fund – Project Update as he was 
the Chair of the Community Hub and a Member of Cumbria County Council. 
 
Councillor Wall declared an Other Registrable Interest in Agenda Item 11 - Levelling 
Up Fund – Project Update as she was a Member of Cumbria County Council. 
 
82 – Minutes 
 
The Minutes of the meeting held on 9th November, 2022 were agreed as a correct 
record. 
 
83 – Public Participation 
 
RESOLVED:- To note that no questions, representations, deputations or petitions had 
been received in respect of the meeting. 
 
  

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



 
84 – Barrow Levelling Up Fund – Project Update 
 
The Capital Programme Manager provided an update on progress on the Barrow 
Levelling Up Fund Programme and set out the next steps over the coming months. 
 
A Table showing an indicative project programme for the Levelling Up Fund had been 
included with the report. The project must be completed by March 2025 to meet the 
terms of the Memorandum of Understanding with DHLUC. 
 
The next key steps up until the end of March 2023 were as follows:- 
 

 Produce a consultation feedback report following the November 2022 public 
consultation, which would be published on the Council’s website. 

 A further consultation would be held in early 2023 to consult on the proposed 
RIBA 3 designs prior to submitting a formal planning application. 

 The Council would seek to appoint a contractor to demolish Dalton Road 
properties (No 77-79, 81 and 83) and the Ginnel in early 2023. The creation of 
the green dwell space would be subject to a separate planning application. 

 Progress LUF project designs, alongside the proposed town centre community 
hub and market square events space, up to RIBA 3 and prepare the associated 
documentation for the planning application and listed building consent 
application. 

 Engage with Cumbria Highways and the Local Committee in relation to the 
public realm enhancements on Dalton Road, Portland Walk and Duke Street 
and prepare all traffic regulation orders and other highway consents. 

 Barrow Council’s agents would prepare publications to commence soft 
marketing testing with prospective market stall, food and beverage and 
leisure/entertainment tenants for the upgraded Market. 

 Further intrusive survey works were being scoped, including ground 
investigations within the public realm and structural surveys to influence the 
façade and roof design. Early enabling refurbishment work activities would be 
procured and delivered where practical. 

 
It was moved by Councillor Hamilton and seconded by Councillor Morgan, and 
 
RESOLVED:- It was unanimously agreed: 
 
1. To note the progress within the paper and endorse the proposed next steps; 

and 
 
2. To agree the procurement and award of contracts for enabling works and 

survey works for the Levelling Up Fund Project, Town Centre Community Hub 
and Market Square Event Space be delegated to the Director of People and 
Place. 

 
85 – Capital Programme Update 
 
The Capital Programme 2022-2026 had been presented to the Executive Committee 
on 12th October, 2022.  

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



 
The report contained revisions from the in-year project review carried out by the 
Capital Programme Manager in consultation with the Director of Resources. 
 
The revisions had been made to the programme to produce an estimated spend 
for 2022-2023 with externally funded projects reprofiled, new projects added, and 
other changes. 
 
The revised Capital Programme had been attached to the report as: 
 

 2022-2023  £9,611,017 

 2023-2024  £26,866,105 

 2024-2025  £17,961,920 

 2025-2026  £663,804 
 
Expenditure against the revised Capital Programme had been reported along with 
notes indicating the current position or stage of the project. 
 
The external Town Deal projects had not initiated claims until Quarter 3 and could be 
set aside when comparing Quarter 2 expenditure to the budget: 
 
Capital expenditure was uneven across the year and to provide further assurance of 
the programme being spent, the latest position was reported. 
 
Councillor Hamilton wished for it to be placed on record his thanks for the Capital 
Programme Manager visiting Greengate Street Residents regarding proposed 
improvements under the North Central Renewal Area Project. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Hamilton and seconded by Councillor Wall, and 
 
RESOLVED:- It was unanimously agreed: 
 
1. To approve the Capital Programme reprofiling; 
 
2. To approve the use of £150,000 for preparatory works in the Market Hall ahead 

of the Levelling Up Fund project funded from the Renewals Reserve; 
 
3. To approve the use of £150,000 for Piel Island Facility Improvements funded 

from usable capital receipts; 
 
4. To note the other revisions made to the Capital Programme; and  
 
5. To note the expenditure in 2022-2023. 
 
Local Government Act 1972 - Excluded Items  
 
It was moved by Councillor Hamilton and seconded by Councillor Wall that the meeting 
moved into Part Two, and  
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



RESOLVED:- That the items to be taken in Part Two of the Agenda be dealt with 
following the exclusion of the press and the public. 
 
86 – Options for Future Stray Dog Provision 
 

The Head of Public Protection presented a report on Options for Future Stray Dog 
Provision. 
 

It was moved by Councillor Hamilton and seconded by Councillor Morgan, and 
 
RESOLVED:- To unanimously agree to defer making a decision until the next meeting 
to allow the Head of Public Protection to provide Members with further information 
regarding the options for future service delivery and fees and charges. 
 
The meeting closed at 3.14 pm. 

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Executive Committee  

Wednesday, 11 January 2023 

Council Finances Quarter 2 2022-2023 

 
 

Report from:   Director of Resources  

Report Author:  Director of Resources  

Wards:    None 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  This report presents a summary of the General Fund core revenue budget at the 

30 September 2022 and comments on other aspects of Council finance. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that the Executive Committee:-  

 
1. Note the General Fund financial monitoring at 30 September 2022; 
2. Note the use of reserves at paragraph 3.4; 
3. Agree the revisions to the Capital Programme at paragraph 3.13; 
4. Note the improved external interest earned on temporary investments at 

paragraph 3.15; and 
5. Agree that the Waste Service budget is increased as set out in paragraph 

3.20; 
6. Note the procurement exemptions required to establish the Waste 

Service at paragraph 3.22; 
7. Note the Medium Term Financial Plan 2023-2024 revision; and 
8. Note the completion of the Energy Rebate payments. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 The General Fund budget for 2022-2023 was set at £8.84m and consisted of: 

 

 In-year direct service expenditure less service income of £10.64m 

 Year-end internal support allocations, capital accounting, projects, treasury 

management, and pension accounting which totals £0.26m 

 Payment of housing benefits and the associated subsidy from the Department 

for Work and Pensions at £0.48m 

Page 9

Agenda Item 8



 Less the use of earmarked reserves at £2.54m 

 

3.2 The in-year direct service expenditure is compared to a broadly profiled budget 

and reported quarterly with major variations highlighted. 

 

3.3 The current in-year direct service expenditure less service income was last 

reported as £11.6m at quarter 1, and now comes to £13.195m; the additional 

£1.595m comes from: 

 

 Use of reserves £1.479m 

 Additional external interest earned £0.116m used to fund a reduction in car 

parking income 

 

3.4 The reserves added to services since quarter 1 was presented have been used in 

accordance with the Reserves and Balances Policy and cover: 

 

 £0.513m utilities 

 £0.350m public buildings maintenance 

 £0.329m waste project 

 £0.101m contractual inflation 

 £0.068m LGR (community governance review, backfill and day 1 readiness) 

 £0.034m solicitor fees and external advice 

 £0.015m IT hardware replacement 

 £0.015m NNDR on empty properties 

 £0.015m automation of Universal Credit data 

 £0.012m cremator repairs 

 £0.011m playing pitch strategy (Local Plan) 

 £0.005m shellfish sampling 

 £0.004m BID levy payable on Council properties 

 £0.004m staff training 

 £0.002m abandoned vehicles 

 £0.001m essential car user lump sum 

 

3.5 The current in-year £13.195m direct service budget is split between the Councils 

reporting divisions in the following table, along with the quarter 2 budget, actual 

net expenditure, and variance: 

Page 10

Agenda Item 8



 
 

3.6 Major variations are reviewed and the exceptional items (10% and/or £10k) to note 

from this quarter are: 

 

 Business Support – car parking income budget has been reduced by £116k 

 Operational Services 

o £68k employee costs not spent 

o (£24k) less income than budgeted from bulky household collections 

 People & Communities - £45k employee costs not spent 

 Programme Management & Climate Change - £12k employee costs 

 Public Protection - £18k employee costs not spent 

 Resources – £105k employee costs not spent 

 Support Services – £120k employee costs not spent 

 

3.7 Variations will continue to be monitored and any further budget revisions will be 

considered as part of the ongoing monitoring. 

 

3.8 The turnover of staff and the ongoing vacancies account for a significant proportion 

of the current budget underspend.  Recruitment activity is constant and during 

quarter 3 additional external staffing and services have been retained to fill the 

gaps short term.  On 1 April 2022 the establishment consisted of 273 permanent 

posts and at the 30 September 2022, 33 of those posts were vacant (12%). 

 

3.9 The staff turnover between April and September 2022 is shown in the following 

table: 

Division

Current

Budget

£000

Q2

Profile

£000

Q2

Actual

£000

Q2

Variance

£000

Asset Management (731) (405) (398) (7) 

Building Control 95 49 39 10 

Business Support 16 161 172 (11) 

Development Management 345 59 55 4 

Operational Services 4,310 1,669 1,628 41 

People & Communities 208 134 90 44 

Programme Mgmt & Climate Change 296 85 64 21 

Public Protection 655 304 265 39 

Regeneration & Planning Policy 316 152 155 (3) 

Visitor Economy & Culture 1,149 580 592 (12) 

Legal & Governance 512 227 213 14 

Resources 2,318 1,427 1,318 109 

Support Services 3,706 1,521 1,403 118 

Total 13,195 5,963 5,596 367 

Page 11

Agenda Item 8



 
 

3.10 Capital Programme 

 

3.11 The Capital Programme was presented at the Executive Committee meeting of 

the 14 December 2022 and included a report of expenditure at quarter 2. 

 

3.12 There have been further revisions to the Programme in relation to the profiling of 

Town Deal projects, the inclusion of the UK Shared Prosperity Fund projects, and 

the revisions to the capital sum required as part of establishing direct delivery of 

the Waste Service (see paragraph 3.21). 

 

3.13 The revisions set out below will be incorporated into the Capital Programme: 

 

Project 
2022-23 

£000 

2023-24 

£000 

2024-25 

£000 

2025-26 

£000 

Total 

£000 

Town Deal external projects (1,191) (1,175) 2,292 74 0 

UKSPF projects 174 - - - 174 

Waste Service 141 - - - 141 

Expenditure (876) (1,175) 2,292 74 315 

Town Deal grant (1,191) (1,175) 2,292 74 0 

UKSPF grant 174 - - - 174 

Usable Capital Receipts 141 - - - 141 

Funding (876) (1,175) 2,292 74 315 

 

3.14 Treasury Management 

 

3.15 The Treasury Management activities remain within the Policy approved in March 

2022.  There are no changes to the fixed term debt and a £1m maturity in March 

2023 will be repaid.  The interest earned to the 30 September 2022 was £281k 

which is far higher than the quarter 2 budget expectation of £37k due to the upturn 

in investment interest rates; this will be used to support existing budget pressures. 

 

3.16 The temporary investments at the 30 September 2022 totalled £42.75m and 

include funds temporarily advanced from government for Business Rate retail 

reliefs as an aid to cashflow; repayments are included in the cashflow profiling: 

 

Month Starting Leaving Starting Leaving

April 3                1                -             5                

May 1                2                -             -             

June 3                2                1                1                

July 1                6                2                -             

August 1                1                1                -             

September 1                2                2                -             

Total 10              14              6                6                

Permanent Casual & Temporary

Page 12

Agenda Item 8



 
 

3.17 Waste Service 

 

3.18 The Council increased 2022-2023 budgets to recognise the cost of direct delivery 

for the October to March period and forecast future funding requirements for the 

2023-2024 budget setting process. 

 

3.19 An additional £125k is estimated to be required for the revenue budget; several 

aspects of cost/purchase are new to the Council and estimates were made in 

establishing direct delivery.  The areas of estimation are considered against actual 

expenditure, usage, and any other relevant factors.  The insourced staff pay 

equalisation project has concluded and is included in the budgeted figures. 

 

3.20 The additional £125k includes changes in the staffing structure and fleet which are 

necessary to achieve some service fundamentals and ensure an effective and 

efficient service is provided.  The increase in costs is pro-rata for 2022-2023 and 

full year for 2023-2024; for 2022-2023 the budget pressure is £31k and it is 

proposed that this shall be funded from the additional interest earned on temporary 

investments along with the 1 to the 9 October 2022 period which was delivered 

under the previous contract (the budget was based on a 1 October start date). 

 

3.21 The capital costs of the Waste Service relate to the purchase of fleet, equipment, 

and service specific IT.  The initial estimate of capital was £650k; the actual capital 

requirement was £791k based upon the agreed valuations plus subsequent capital 

purchases to establish the fleet.  The additional funding will be drawn from any 

revenue underspend, additional income, or reserves, if the usable capital receipts 

are insufficient at 31 March 2023. 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 8



3.22 In terms of procurement several exemptions were considered to ensure service 

delivery and normal operations; the exemptions process was adhered to in all 

cases:  

 

 32 West – direct delivery specific communications. 

 Road Haulage Software, SupaTrak, MONKS, CP Davidson RCV, Dawson 

Sweeper and various specialist parts and repair providers – vehicles. 

 Avery Weigh Tronix – weighbridge. 

 ARCO – personal protective equipment. 

 

3.23 Medium Term Financial Plan 

 

3.24 The revisions from quarter 2 monitoring have been incorporated into the Medium 

Term Financial Plan for monitoring purposes: 

 

 2023-2024 

£m 

Deficit as published in September 2022 2.3 

Waste service delivery updated October 2022 0.1 

Waste service delivery updated January 2023 0.1 

Car parking income reduction 0.1 

Revised deficit 2.6 

 

3.25 Whilst Barrow Borough Council will not be setting a budget for 2023-2024 it is 

important to recognise how the deficit would have been addressed in setting the 

2023-2024 budget. 

 

3.26 There are items of expected additional income and also anticipated reduced 

expenditure that would be included against budget assumptions, and other budget 

areas that would be further investigated during 2023-2024 to address the 

remaining deficit which would initially be supported from reserves as a one-off to 

allow a sustained budget reduction to be achieved. 

 

3.27 The anticipated funding of the revised 2023-2024 deficit would be: 

 

 2023-2024 

£m 

Revised deficit 2.6 

Recycling income (0.5) 

Staff turnover (0.7) 

External interest earned (0.5) 

Energy market – potential recovery (0.5) 

Net position (0.4) 

 

3.28 The following areas will be explored during 2023-2024: fleet financing, income 

generation, invest to save, and cross-cutting efficiencies and economies. 

 

Page 14

Agenda Item 8



3.29  Energy Rebate 

 

3.30 The Energy Rebate mandatory payment scheme ended on 30 September 2022 

with 30,094 households receiving £4,514,100 in the form of: 

 

 28,213 as £150 payments 

 1,881 as £150 Council Tax credits 

 

3.31 The Energy Rebate discretionary payment scheme ended on 30 November 2022 

with 1,335 households receiving £159,764.  The discretionary fund was cash 

limited and was based upon the estimated number of eligible households, whilst 

ensuring that those on Council Tax Support received the full £150 to match the 

mandatory scheme and providing for any eligible households that missed the 

mandatory scheme. 

 

3.32 The Council distributed £159,764 of the £162,000 discretionary fund received; the 

principles of the scheme were established in May 2022 and reported into 

government.  These payments were distributed as: 

 

 722 as £119 payments 

 11 as £150 payments 

 584 as £119 Council Tax credits 

 18 as £150 Council Tax credits 

 

3.33 Both of the schemes are subject to reconciliation and assurance processes with 

government.  The Council received £4,629,900 for the mandatory scheme and 

£115,800 will be repaid along with the £2,236 discretionary scheme balance. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 Consultation is not relevant to the content of this report. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 There are no alternative options to present. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 The recommendations primarily concern the Council’s financial resilience which 

underpins the Council’s operations strategies and Council Plan. 

 

7.0 Implications  

7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 The implications are contained within the report. 

 

7.2 Legal  

7.2.1 There are no specific legal implications from the recommendations; the Council 

has an ongoing duty to prepare and maintain a balanced budget. 

Page 15

Agenda Item 8



 

7.3 Local Government Reorganisation 

7.3.1 Any recurring budget impacts will be considered by Westmorland and Furness 

Council as part of the budget setting process. 

 

7.4 Equality and Diversity  

7.4.1 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, the report has no direct 
Equality and Diversity implications. 

 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Budget assumptions are 

insufficient. 
Budget shortfall. 

Best estimates are used 

and are supported by 

financial reserves. 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Core expenditure is beyond 

the budget proposed or 

income is lower than 

expected. 

Budget shortfall. 
Financial monitoring and 

budgetary control. 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Unplanned or unexpected 

expenditure pressures. 

Funding shortfall and 

moratorium. 

Financial planning and 

accountability. 

 
Contact Officers  

Director of Resources directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk  

 

 

Page 16

Agenda Item 8

mailto:directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk


PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Executive Committee  

Wednesday, 11 January 2023 

Risk Management  

 
 

Report from:   Director of Resources  

Report Author:  Director of Resources 

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1 The Council’s Risk Management arrangements are currently under review with 

expert support engaged.  The Risk Management Policy will be reviewed and 

revised if required; the risk registers risk will be reviewed and revised to align 

with best practice and incorporate reference to major programmes.  The risk 

registers remain live during the review. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

 It is recommended that the Executive Committee note the report. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 The Council’s Risk Management policy was due to be reviewed in September 

2022; the risk registers are reviewed quarterly. 

 

3.2 Zurich Municipal has been engaged by the Council to review the Risk 

Management Policy, and to review the format of the risk register to align to 

current best practice.  Tailored training will then be delivered. 

 

3.3 The Risk Management Policy is attached at Appendix 1. 

 

3.4 The risk registers are attached at Appendix 2.  

 

3.5 The External Auditor’s 2020-2021 Annual Report highlighted risk management 

as an area for improvement and outlined aspects of the risk register to expand 

upon and enhance the effectiveness of the process: 

 

 To create a direction of travel (has the risk score changed) 

Page 17

Agenda Item 9



 Establish a target risk score (to measure the effectiveness of mitigation) 

 Future actions required (to address risks that can be mitigated) 

 Sources of risk and assurance (to inform readers) 

 Dates of the last and next review (for each risk) 

 

3.6 The current risk registers are reviewed quarterly by the Senior Management 

Team and reported to the Audit and Governance Committee.  The improvements 

noted in 3.5 will enhance visibility and understanding of the risk assessment, and 

the impacts of mitigating actions. 

 

3.7 The outcome of the review will be reported to the Executive Committee for 

approval and to the Audit and Governance Committee to provide assurance to 

those charged with governance. 

 

3.8 The risk assessment process operated by the Council, as set out in the Policy, 

along with a review of the risk registers will form part of the tailored training.  The 

external support engaged for this review is also working with Westmorland and 

Furness Council. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 The consultation is an internal process to ensure that all significant risks to the 

Council are recorded, measured, and treat in accordance with the policy. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 There are no alternatives to present. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 In order to be able to deliver Council Plan Priorities the organisation must be 

aware of the risks facing service and strategic delivery to manage and mitigate 

those. 

 

7.0 Implications  

7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 There are no financial, resource or procurement implications arising from this 

report. 

 

7.2 Legal  

7.2.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

 

7.3 Local Government Reorganisation 

7.3.1 The risk registers will be incorporated into the risk management processes within 

Westmorland and Furness Council. 

 

7.4   Equality and Diversity 
  

Page 18

Agenda Item 9



7.4.1 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, there are no individual 
impacted by the recommendation. 

 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Risk occurs or materialises. Unforeseen events  

disrupt service delivery  

and achievement of the  

Council’s plans and  

priorities. 

Establish a risk  

management policy and  

monitor significant risks. 

 

Contact Officers  

Director of Resources directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk  

 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Risk Management Policy 

2 Risk Registers December 2022 

 
 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 9

mailto:directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Risk Management Policy 

 
 
 
 

Version Control: 

Document Name: Risk Management Policy 

Version:  Version 4 

Responsible Officer: Corporate Support Assistant 

Approved by: Full Council  

Date Approved: November 2019 

Review Date: September 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 21

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



Page 2 
 

Risk Management Policy 
 

Introduction and purpose 
 
This policy defines Barrow Borough Council’s approach to risk management.  
 
Barrow Borough Council has adopted a balanced approach to risk management. The 
Council recognise that good risk management will support and improve the decision 
making process, increasing the likelihood of objectives being achieved and enabling 
the Council to quickly respond to new threats and opportunities.  
 
Risk management is about understanding the opportunities and risks that could help 
or prevent us in trying to deliver our intended outcome. 
 
Understanding and managing our threats or risks comes down to four questions: 

 What’s the worst that could happen to us? 

 What’s the likelihood of it happening? 

 What would be the impact if it did? 

 What can we do about it (i.e. how can we prevent it from happening or what 
can we put in place to manage it if it should? 
 

Robust risk management will also help us to explore and take up opportunities as 
they are identified.  
 
Good risk management does not mean that we are to take greater risks, nor that we 
avoid taking risks. Rather, strong risk management gives us a better understanding 
of the risks and opportunities that we face and how we can best manage them. 
 
The real value of strong risk management lies in the benefits it will deliver. These 
benefits will be varied in their nature and extent, some might be more significant than 
others, but they will all be important to the Council’s reputation and ability to deliver 
an improved public service. 
 
Some of the benefits we can expect to realise include: 

 Supporting and improving the decision making process; 

 Improved public confidence in our ability to deliver services (our reputation); 

 Early warning of problems; 

 Prioritisation of resources; 

 Improved business planning by focusing on the outcome not the process. 
 

Barrow Borough Council’s approach  
 
The Council’s approach to risk management is to support the main requirement of 
good corporate governance: 
 
Strong Leadership: 

 Elected Members and Senior Managers will support and promote strong risk 
management throughout the Council. 

 

Page 22

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



Page 3 
 

The Elected Members: 

 The Executive Committee approve the Risk Management Policy Statement 
and subsequent revisions. They consider the Risk Management implications 
when making decisions. Also they agree to the Council’s appropriate 
responses to its highest risks. 

 The Leader of the Council will be responsible for the overview of the Council’s 
Risk Management activities.  

 Audit Committee review the Council’s Risk Register.  
 
Senior Managers: 

 Ensure that there is a robust framework in place to identify, monitor and 
manage the Council’s operational risks and opportunities. Also make sure that 
there is a management and quarterly review of the corporate risk register, 
along with demonstrating a commitment to the embedding of risk 
management across the Council.  

 
Consistent:  

 There will be a robust structure and a consistent approach to risk 
management throughout the Council. We will use a risk management 
framework to equip our staff so they can manage risks appropriately.  

 
Open and Transparent: 

 Our approach to managing risks will be open and clear. The Council will 
promote a learning culture and blame will not be placed if decisions that have 
been made turn out to be wrong. Staff and Members have access to 
information on our current risks and opportunities and how we are managing 
them. Corporate and operational risks will be recorded in the Council’s Risk 
Register, which is published on the Barrow Borough Council’s website. 

 
Accountable: 

 There will be clear accountability for our risks across the organisation. Our 
risks will be open to regular Audit Committee inspection and also monitored 
by external agencies. 

 Appropriate risk-taking and innovation will be encouraged and promoted 
through a ‘no blame’ culture.  
 

The approach to effective risk management will be based on identifying the risk, 
assessing the risk and managing the risk. 
 
Identifying the risk: 

 The manager will use their experiences of their work area to identify threats. 
 
Assessing the risk: 

 Management Board will assess the risk using a standard risk matrix. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 23

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



Page 4 
 

 
 

Impact/ 
Likelihood 

1: 
Insignificant 

2:  
Minor 

3: 
Moderate 

4:  
Significant 

5:  
Major 

1: Almost 
never 

     

2: 
Unlikely 

     

3: 
Uncertain 

     

4: Likely      

5: Almost 
always 

     

 
Managing the risk: 
We will deal with significant risks in one of the four ways described below: 
 
1: Tolerate the risk: As an organisation we should accept that sometimes it is 
appropriate to continue with activities even though we know that it involves taking a 
risk. For a risk where the benefits significantly outweigh the disadvantage, we should 
consider that to be when acceptable when: 

 We can put controls in place to mitigate the risk. 

 The risk cannot be mitigated cost effectively. 
 
When identifying controls it is important to remember to establish the cost of the 
controls before implementing them.  
 
2: Treat the risk: This involves reducing the risk to an acceptable level either by 
containment actions or contingent actions.  
 
Mitigating actions involve actions that can reduce the likelihood of occurrence or 
reduce the impact if it does occur. These are applied before the risk emerges. 
 
Contingent actions involve having an action plan of what we can do to minimise the 
impact if the risk occurs. These are applied after the risk has appeared.  
 
3:  Terminate the risk: This involves doing things differently and thus removing the 
risk. This option is more applicable to operational risks but is limiting in terms of 
strategic risks.  
 
4. Transfer the risk to a third party: Examples of this include insurance or paying 
contractors to undertake some of the Council’s functions. This is a good way of 
mitigating financial risk and buying in expertise from other organisations.  
 
When managing and controlling our risks, our actions should be proportionate – the 
cost and time of our efforts should be in balance with the potential impact of the risk. 
 

Page 24

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



Page 5 
 

Management Board will identify mitigating actions to reduce the likelihood and/ or 
impact. It is also agreed for Management Board to have annual meeting for risk 
management alone. 
 
Once a threat has been identified, the likelihood and impact of the threat is assessed 
and a risk score is established. The Council has identified a risk score of 15 above 
which it will take specific action to lower the likelihood and/ or impact to a residual 
risk score that the Council deems to be acceptable. In many cases we will not be 
able to mitigate the risk below a score of 20.  
 
Where possible a timescale will be agreed for the implementation of the mitigating 
actions and bring the risk score down to an acceptable level.  
 
An example of how this works is shown below.    
 
Recording the risk: This is identified in the Council’s risk register, example: 
Reference  

Risk 
number/year/version 

Inherit 
Risk  

 
 

Mitigated 
Risk 

 

Ref. Risks 

Im
p

a
c
t 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 

 
 

Potential 
consequences 

Existing 
control/mitigation 

Im
p

a
c
t 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 

Risk 
owner 

1/20/1 

Significant 
changes 
arising from 
Central 
Government 
Legislation. 

5 5 25 

 Regulatory 
changes 

 Changes to 
service 
delivery 

 Service 
performance 
implications 

 Resource 
requirements 

Awareness 

 Monitoring Officer will 
receive notification 

 Horizon scanning by 
Management Team 
and Heads of Service 

 Membership of 
professional and local 
government bodies 
aids horizon scanning 

Actions 

 Management Team will 
determine actions to be 
taken 

 We will create detailed 
project plans to 
manage 
implementation of 
changes 

 We will adopt a 
management of change 
approach to mitigate 
against significant 
impact to the Council 
and its staff 

 Service Manager will 
be responsible for 
implementing changes 

 Financial and workforce 
planning will be 
reviewed 

4 5 20 
Monitoring 
Officer 

 

Page 25

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



Page 6 
 

The Risk Register is a record of the Council’s risks and is periodically reviewed and 
published to monitor the progress made in reducing the scores of individual risks. It 
also contains the risk owners and mitigating actions they have put in place. 
 
Delivery of the annual objectives and significant projects  
 
The Council will use a similar approach for managing the risks that may affect 
delivery of the Council’s objectives with appropriate managers. If there is a high risk 
of an objective not being achieved Management Board will determine whether an 
action plan is required to mitigate the risk.  
 
Staff Responsibility  
 
Lead Officer 

 Have a responsibility for the development and implementation of action plans 
 

All Staff 

 Be aware of the risks and control mechanisms within their area of work 

 Report any new risks to their Line Manager 
 
Corporate Support Manager 

 Develop and maintain the Risk Register 

 Monitor the implementation of action plans  

 Prepare reports for senior managers and Members 

 Arrange training in risk management for Councillors and Officers. 
 
Training 

 The Council provide appropriate risk management training for staff involved in 
risk management and elected members as required. 

 
Risk Policy Publication 

 The Corporate Support Assistant will ensure that the latest version of the Risk 
Management Policy is published. 

Page 26

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



Corporate and Operational Risk Register               December 2022 

Page 1 
 

 Corporate Risk Register 
 

Reference  
Risk number/year/version 

Inherit Risk  
 

 
Mitigating 

Risk 
 

Ref. Risks 

Im
p

a
c
t 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 

 
 

Potential consequences Existing control/mitigation 

Im
p

a
c
t 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 

Lead Officer 

1/21/1 

Significant changes 
arising from Central 
Government 
Legislation. 

5 5 25 

 Regulatory changes. 

 Changes to service delivery. 

 Service performance implications. 

 Resource requirements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Awareness 

 Monitoring Officer will receive notification. 

 Horizon scanning by Management Team and Heads of Service. 

 Membership of professional and local government bodies aids 
horizon scanning. 

Actions 

 Management Team will determine actions to be taken. 

 Create detailed project plans to manage implementation of 
changes. 

 Adopt a management of change approach to mitigate against 
significant impact to the Council and its staff. 

 Heads of Service will be responsible for implementing changes 
through service planning. 

 Financial and workforce planning will be reviewed. 

 External support and specialists will be acquired. 

 The Council will respond to COVID requirements. 

2 5 10 
Head of Legal and 
Governance 

2/21/1 
Poor internal and 
external  
communications. 

4 4 16 

 Poorly informed direction of resources and lack of support for 
change. 

 Providing inaccurate information to the public may result in 
processing errors and reworking. 

 Public may have a negative perception of the Council.  
 
 

Awareness 

 Communication strategy on priorities. 

 Internal & external regular publications. 

 Regular staff communication from the Chief Executive. 

 Comments, Compliments and Complaints monitoring will be 
reported to the Senior Management Team and the Audit and 
Governance Committee. 

Actions 

 Regular staff and management meetings. 

 Key stakeholder networks for consultation. 

 Co-ordinated press releases. 

 Develop and maintain website and intranet. 

 Use external communication experts. 

 Recommence staff newsletter. 

 LGR staff newsletter and LGR specific briefings. 

2 2 4 Chief Executive 

3/21/1 

Failure to achieve 
efficiency saving, 
maximise income, or 
performance targets.  

 
5 

 
5 

 
25 

 Greater costs than budgeted for. 

 Reduced income generated. 

 Additional costs to mitigate COVID. 

 Costs of Local Government Reorganisation. 

 Core budget deficit to eliminate. 
 
 
 

Awareness 

 Budgetary control and financial management. 

 Regular reporting to Senior Management Team and Executive 
Committee. 

 Performance and achievements reported to Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee. 

Actions 

 Heightened analysis of budgets and services. 

 Service transformation. 

 Business/service planning. 

 Pursue action to increase income streams. 

 Budget and performance monitoring. 

 Secure additional government support when available. 

 Challenges to hospitality industry may impact on income. 

4 4 16 Director of Resources 

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 2



Corporate and Operational Risk Register               December 2022 

Page 2 
 

Reference  
Risk number/year/version 

Inherit Risk  
 

 
Mitigating 

Risk 
 

Ref. Risks 

Im
p

a
c
t 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 

 
 

Potential consequences Existing control/mitigation 

Im
p

a
c
t 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 

Lead Officer 

4/21/1 
Poor management of 
projects and 
contracts. 

4 5 20 

 Leads to overruns on time or cost and failure to achieve project 
aims.  

 Non-compliance with contract standing orders and financial 
regulations. 

 Potential of fraud and corruption. 

 Irretrievable breakdown in contractor arrangements results in the 
contractor being unable to deliver the outsourced service.  
 

 
 

Awareness  

 Managing contract performance. 

 Contract checklist.  

 Service plans. 

 Monitoring of contractor performance. 

 Regular contractor meetings. 
Actions 

 Project management methodology. 

 External project management support. 

 External contract management support. 

 Contract standing orders and financial regulations. 

 Budgetary control. 

 The Council owns property assets used by contractors. 

3 2 6 
Director of People and 
Place  

5/21/1 

Ineffective workforce 
planning or imposed 
reductions in 
resources.  

4 5 20 

 Poor standards of service or disruption to service.   

 Service transformation and commissioning can help build 
resilience. 

 Loss of qualified and knowledgeable staff exposing the Council 
to risk of service failure and legal challenge. 

 
 
 
 
 

Awareness 

 Established suite of HR policies and procedures. 

 Service planning process. 
Actions  

 Organisational review. 

 Organisational development. 

 Training and development. 

 Working environment. 

 Staff surveys/consultation. 

 Agile and flexible working. 

 Business continuity plans. 

 Management training. 

 Appraisals. 

 Service planning. 

 Values and behaviours framework. 

2 3 6 Director of Resources 

6/21/1 
Failure to secure and 
manage data.  

5 5 25 

 Loss of/ corruption of/ inaccuracy of data, results in disruption to 
services and breaches of security.   

 Major IT physical hardware failure or electronic attack, such as 
viruses, hacking or spyware, causes disruption to services and 
breaches of security.   

 Financial penalties and reputational risk. 
 
 
 
 

Awareness 

 Data breach reporting. 

 IT security monitoring. 

 Awareness of cyber security risks. 
Actions 

 Data protection policy and procedure. 

 Freedom of Information publication scheme. 

 Data retention policy and procedure for archive and disposal. 

 Information breach response plan. 

 Business continuity plan. 

 Disaster recovery plan. 

 IT system security measures and policies. 

 Public Services Network compliance. 

 IT and data online training modules. 

 GDPR training and policy. 

 Review data sharing agreements. 

 Data owner central register. 

 Anti-virus software. 

 Multi-factor authentication. 

 Clear desk strategy. 

 Agile working. 

 Virtual meetings where applicable. 

2 3 6 
Director of Resources 
 

P
age 28

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 2



Corporate and Operational Risk Register               December 2022 

Page 3 
 

Reference  
Risk number/year/version 

Inherit Risk  
 

 
Mitigating 

Risk 
 

Ref. Risks 

Im
p

a
c
t 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 

 
 

Potential consequences Existing control/mitigation 

Im
p

a
c
t 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 

Lead Officer 

7/21/1 Economic change. 5 5 25 

 Imposed savings requirements, the financial settlement and 
Fairer Funding Review; Housing Revenue Account restraints; 
reliance on Council Tax and Business Rate income. 

 Changes in service demands and levels of income and 
unsustainable costs for the Council. 

 Rising energy prices – gas, electricity, and fuel. 
 
 
 

Awareness 

 Council wide efficiency measures. 

 Budget monitoring. 

 Debt management policy. 

 Market pressures. 
Actions  

 Financial regulations and contract standing orders. 

 Organisational review to ensure we have the right posts and the 
right skills. 

 Medium Term Financial Plan and savings plan. 

 Political decisions aligned to planned budget strategies and 
available resources. 

 Review of fees and charges. 

 Maintaining and contributing to financial reserves. 

 Strong financial management system. 

 Capital finance risk management. 

 Internal Audit review of fundamental systems. 

 Modelling and monitoring of Business Rates (including appeals) 
and Council Tax. 

 Spending Review technical assessment. 

4 4 16 Director of Resources 

8/21/1 

Natural disaster 
pandemic; malicious 
or accidental 
incident. 

5 4 20 

 Impacts support required by citizens or disrupts existing Council 
services. 

 Impact on Council’s finances. 

 Additional duties imposed by Government impact Council 
resources, business as usual and plans. 

 There is a risk that additional costs and loss of income 
associated with COVID or another event that depletes the 
Council’s reserves to such an extent that the Council is no 
longer financially sustainable. 

 
 
 

Awareness 

 Information provided by external organisations. 

 Communications strategy. 
Actions 

 Emergency plan. 

 Emergency planning exercises. 

 Review business continuity plan. 

 Review of disaster recovery arrangements. 

 Arrangements with partner organisations. 

 Review service arrangements with major contractors. 

 Work with other Cumbria local authorities to lobby Central 
Government to address any costs (COVID for example). 

 Continue to review reserves and Medium Term Finances. 

4 4 16 Chief Executive 

9/21/1 
Changes in political 
priorities. 

5 4 20 

 Resulting in immediate changes that require additional resource 
to achieve and fail to reflect priorities determined by 
consultation. 

 
 

Actions 

 Financial and workforce planning. 

 Monitoring by Management Team and reporting to the Executive 
Committee. 

 Clear corporate planning and regular performance monitoring. 

 Effective service planning. 

 Respond to national consultation on key policy changes. 

 Membership of the Local Government Association. 

 Member training sessions to reflect changes in priorities. 

5 3 15 Chief Executive 

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 2



Corporate and Operational Risk Register               December 2022 

Page 4 
 

Reference  
Risk number/year/version 

Inherit Risk  
 

 
Mitigating 

Risk 
 

Ref. Risks 

Im
p

a
c
t 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 

 
 

Potential consequences Existing control/mitigation 

Im
p

a
c
t 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 

Lead Officer 

10/21/1 
Major Health and 
Safety incident at the 
Council.  

4 4 16 

 Additional costs for inquiry, disruption to service and possible 
prosecution. 

 Service interruption. 

 Reputational damage. 

Awareness 

 Corporate wide H&S training. 
Actions 

 H&S Management Board. 

 H&S Management Group. 

 H&S procedures, including specific departmental needs. 

 Specialist H&S advisor and expertise. 

 Insurance. 

 Workplace and DSE assessments. 

4 3 12 Chief Executive 

12/20/1 
Failure to deliver the 
objectives of the 
Council plan 

5 3 15 

 Opportunities to deliver improvements for the Borough may be 
missed. 

 Detrimental impact for residents. 

 Unable to attract new businesses and residents to the Borough. 
 

 There is an annual review of progress against the Council Plan 
which is presented to the Executive Committee.  

 The plan contains actions which will deliver the plan’s objectives. 

 Service plans for each department are currently being prepared.  

5 2 10 Chief Executive 

13/21/1 

Climate Change 
adversely impacts 
the Borough and its 
surroundings. 

5 5 25 

 The natural flora, fauna, habitats and features of the area 
deteriorate or are lost. 

 Greenhouse gas emissions are not reduced leaving the Earth's 
temperature to rise faster than is natural. 

 Extreme weather events such as floods and wildfires increase in 
potential. 

 Clean energy opportunities are not promoted. 

 Waste is not reduced, and reuse is not maximised. 

 Climate emergency declared on 16 July 2019 and made a 
commitment to reduce carbon emissions. 

 The Climate Change Working Group created a 5 year Climate 
Change Policy which was agreed at full council on 16 June 
2020. 

 That policy sets out the ambition for the Borough to be net zero 
carbon no later than 2037. 

 The Low Carbon Barrow project will deliver carbon savings and 
establish a framework for continuous and future developments. 

3 3 9 
Public Protection 
Manager 

14/21/1 

Local Government 
Reorganisation 
adversely impacts 
public services 
for the Borough. 

4 4 16 

 There is no locality focus and services are not tailored to the 
customer’s needs. 

 Service delivery is impacted by the process of reorganisation. 
Current services are reduced or removed. 

 Investment and development in the Borough is reduced or at 
risk. 

 The gaps identified in public health equality are not 

 addressed. 

 The reorganisation will be managed as a project through 
arrangements agreed between the 7 authorities. 

 A structure to provide governance and an action/implementation 
plan is established and workstreams with lead officers have 
been set up. 

 The workstreams will use existing Cumbria-wide working groups 
and the outputs required will flow from the action/implementation 
plan. 

 An implementation reserve has been established together with a 
financial protocol. 

 The actions will take 7 authorities on the journey to 2 authorities 
whilst ensuring service continuity is maintained in the best 
possible way before and after unitisation. 

 Communication and engagement are identified as a key 
workstream – for customers, stakeholders and especially for 
employees. 

 Service reforms and transitions/savings will be achieved within 
the new authorities – there is too high a risk in significant 
changes pre-unitisation. 

 The Council is undertaking a community governance review for 
Barrow Town. 

2 3 6 Chief Executive 

 

P
age 30

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 2



Corporate and Operational Risk Register               December 2022 

Page 5 
 

Operational Risk Register 

 
Reference  

Risk number/year/version 
Inherit Risk  

 
 

Mitigating 
Risk 

 

Ref Risks 

Im
p

a
c
t 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 

 
 

Potential consequences Existing control/mitigation 

Im
p

a
c
t 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 

Lead Officer 

1/21/1 

Service provision and 
performance affected 
by organisational 
change, industrial 
action and/or staff 
sickness. 

4 5 20 

 Complaints, poor performance and possible further costs. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Awareness 

 Established suite of HR policies and procedures. 

 Organisational culture. 

 Management training. 
Actions  

 Working environment. 

 Staff surveys/consultation. 

 Agile and flexible working. 

 Business continuity plans. 

 Appraisals and professional training. 

 Performance monitoring and management. 

 Clear absence management scheme. 

 Workforce strategy. 

3 4 12 Director of Resources 

2/21/1 

Failure of contractor or 
partners to deliver 
services or meet 
agreed performance 
targets. 

4 5 20 

 Additional costs or failed objectives. 
 
 
 
 

Awareness 

 Project management. 
Actions  

 Procurement processes – including financial aspects/contract 
standing orders/equality standards. 

 Contract process – creation of robust contracts. 

 Accountability and risk ownership documented. 

 Service level agreements. 

 Contract monitoring and remedial action. 

 Trained/skilled staff. 

 Established governance arrangements. 

4 3 12 
Director of People and 
Place 

3/21/1 

Potential for fraud, 
corruption, malpractice 
or error, by internal or 
external threats.  In 
additional to 
immediate financial 
loss.  

5 3 12 

 Could harm reputation and lead to additional inquiry costs and 
penalties. 

Awareness 

 Appropriate culture and risk awareness. 
Actions 

 Anti-fraud and corruption strategy. 

 Whistleblowing policy. 

 National Anti-Fraud Network. 

 National Fraud Initiative. 

 Financial regulations and contract standing orders. 

 Codes of conduct. 

 Appropriately trained staff. 

 Segregation of duties. 

 Supported financial management system. 

 Budget monitoring regime. 

 Internal Audit review of systems and controls. 

 Insurance. 

 Annual Governance Statement. 

3 1 3 Director of Resources 

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 2



Corporate and Operational Risk Register               December 2022 

Page 6 
 

Reference  
Risk number/year/version 

Inherit Risk  
 

 
Mitigating 

Risk 
 

Ref Risks 

Im
p

a
c
t 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 

 
 

Potential consequences Existing control/mitigation 

Im
p

a
c
t 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 

Lead Officer 

4/21/1 

Significant 
infrastructure projects 
aren’t properly 
supported. 

5 4 20 

 Projects aren’t delivered in a timely manner. 

 Additional project cost. 

 Loss of reputation. 
 

Awareness 

 Programme Board. 

 Service delivery plan will establish key milestones. 
Actions 

 Regular reviews by the relevant project and programme boards. 

 Review resource and skill requirements. 

 Realign resources with the Council’s priorities. 

 Address skill shortages. 

 Develop project management skills where required. 

5 2 10 
Director of People and 
Place 

5/21/1 
Failure to deliver 
repairs services due to 
COVID restrictions. 

5 3 15 

 Unable to carry out repairs and maintenance services to 
housing assets within the borough. 

 Potential increase in disrepair claims from Solicitors. 

 Tenants at risk of harm from defective components and 
maintenance of gas/electric services. 

 Responsive Repairs Contractor may not be able to maintain 
services due to economic downturn. 

 Materials and components are not available from builders 
merchants. 

 
 

 Arrangements in place to ensure adequate trade resources 
remain available to provide 24 hour emergency cover. 

 Covid 19 Risk Assessments and safe systems of work signed 
off and in place, including PPE and tenant questionnaire. 

 Routine (30 day repairs) are presently on hold to reduce build 
up/backlog of overdue orders. 

 Investigating zonal working by housing area to improve 
efficiency, reduce cold calling and increase communications 
with tenants. 

 Additional software purchased from Eviid to reduce number of 
home visits by staff and provide improved live video chat with 
tenants to identify repair priority and diagnosis. 

5 2 10 
Deputy Director of 
People and Place 

 

P
age 32

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 2



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council 

Executive Committee 

11 January 2023 

Memorial Bench Policy 

 
 

 

1.0 Summary and Conclusions  
 

1.1 This report asks Executive Committee to agree to a revised Barrow Borough 

Council Memorial Bench Policy for Barrow Borough Council owned Cemeteries 

and other land owned by the Council.  This will replace the existing guidelines 

for the installation of memorial seats in the Borough agreed by Executive 

Committee on 10th November 2021.   

 

2.0 Recommendation  
 

2.1      It is recommended that Executive Committee: 
 

(i) Agree the attached Memorial Bench Policy for all Barrow Borough 
Council public open space and cemeteries as attached to the 
report. 

 

3.0 Background and Current Position 

3.1 Executive Committee on 10th November 2021 agreed a set of guidelines for the 

installation of memorial benches on Council owned land. 
 

3.2 At their meeting on 24 March 2022 Overview and Scrutiny members indicated 

that they would undertake a review of the memorial benches policy after 6 

months of operations and this was added to their work programme. On 10 

November 2022 the Memorial Bench Working Group met to review the 

Memorial Bench Policy and recommended the following changes. 
 

(i)  Due to the volume of memorial benches already in place, no new 
benches should be permitted around the coastline of Walney Island. 

(ii) When applying for a bench customers will be informed that planting or 
placing tributes around the bench is not permitted.   

Flowers are permitted and can be placed on the bench SUBJECT TO the 
following 

 They are not wrapped in any paper or plastic coverings 
 They are only placed on the bench for a reasonable period or until the flowers 

die – whichever is the sooner 

   

Report from:   Cemeteries and Crematorium Manager 

Report Author:  Cemeteries and Crematorium Manager 

Wards:    All Wards 

Page 33

Agenda Item 10



 They do not cover more than a quarter of the seating area of the bench 
 They do not prevent the bench being used as a seating area 
 

At the absolute discretion of the Council, the Council retain the right to remove 
the flowers, if required to do so for the reason of good maintenance and/or 
public health and safety 

  

(iii) The bench will be recycled plastic as opposed to hardwood. 

(iv) Any unauthorised benches will be removed. 

(v) The fee is subject to any annual increase in line with the Council’s fees 

and charges. 

3.3 The recommendations were considered by Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

on 7 December 2022 when the recommendations of the working group were 

agreed with an amendment to (ii) to permit flowers being placed excluding 

cellophane and elastic bands.  Subject to that amendment the revisions are 

forwarded to Executive Committee for approval. 
 

4 Consultation  

4.1 Overview and Scrutiny Committee have been consulted about the Memorial 
Bench Policy and have made the following comments.   

 
 The wording to 3.2 (ii) above be altered to permit flowers being placed on the 

bench excluding cellophane and elastic bands. 
 
4.2 The policy will be displayed on the Council website and customer services will 

be made aware of this to inform customers.  
 
5.0 Alternative Options  

5.1 The alternative option is not to make any revisions to the policy.  This is not 

recommended as the revised policy sets out clearer guidelines with regards to 

the location and the type of bench permitted. 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 The Council Plan key priority is to ensure that residents are at the heart of all 
that the Council does and that the environment is clean, green and well 
managed.  The provision of standardised memorial benches with the opportunity 
to personalise plaques will directly contribute to that.   

7.0 Implications  

7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 The benches have been sourced in accordance with the Council’s procurement 

policy.  

7.1.2 The ordering of the benches will be on receipt of payment.  There is no 

cancellation of order provision after signing the agreement.      

7.2 Legal  

7.2.1 Members of the public should be informed and agree from the outset that the 

bench will be removed if it comes into disrepair and is no longer safe to the 

public. 

Page 34

Agenda Item 10



7.3 Local Government Reorganisation 

7.3.1 There are no implications for Local Government Reorganisation. 

7.4 Equality and Diversity  

7.4.1 An Equality Impact Assessment is not required.  

 
 

7.5 Risk 

7.5.1 The demand for benches may outstrip the available locations.  A further piece 

of work if capacity of officers allow may be to determine whether any of the 

existing benches have gone beyond their lifespan or are beyond repair and 

damaged.  On a case-by-case basis any existing benches which are deemed to 

be beyond repair will be removed.  Families would need to apply under the new 

policy for a replacement which would be a standard bench.   

 

Contact Officers  

 

Chris Pollard: Cemeteries & Crematorium Manager 

crpollard@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report  

 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1 Memorial Bench Policy 

 

 

Background Documents Available 

 

Name of Background document  Where it is available  

N/A 

 

N/A 

 

 

Page 35

Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Memorial Bench Policy 

 
 

Version Control: 

Document Name: Memorial Bench Policy 

Version: 11.1.2023 

Author: Cemeteries and Crematorium Manager 

Approved by: Executive Committee 

Date Approved:  

Review Date:  

 

Page 37

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



1. Introduction 

1.1 This policy sets out the policy of the Council for the installation of memorial 

benches on Barrow BC land and cemeteries.   

 

2. Policy Content 

2.1 The bench and plaque can only be purchased through the Council; customers 

are not permitted to supply their own benches or plaques.  The description and cost 

of the bench and plaque should be made known to the customer before purchasing. 

The benches are a standard size and four feet in width and recycled plastic in 

construction.  

 

2.2  No unique designs can be requested.   

 

2.3  Benches will be allowed in any area of the cemeteries but must not infringe on 

other graves or memorials.   

 

2.4 Benches on Barrow BC owned land outside of the cemeteries will be 

considered against the following criteria: 

 

 Only sites which do not have enough benches will be considered.  These 

will be areas which lack any benching nearby or are at a likely stopping 

point such as a beautiful view or a rest point. 

 

 Locations will be chosen to minimise maintenance and vandalism.  

Remote locations with poor access for maintenance and repairs will not 

be considered. 

 

 Due to the volume of memorial benches already in place, no new 

benches will be permitted around the coastline of Walney Island. 

 

 When applying for a bench customers will be informed that planting or 

placing tributes around the bench is not permitted and will be removed. 

Flowers are permitted and can be placed on the bench SUBJECT TO 
the following 

 They are not wrapped in any paper or plastic coverings 
 They are only placed on the bench for a reasonable period or until the 

flowers die – whichever is the sooner 
 They do not cover more than a quarter of the seating area of the bench 
 They do not prevent the bench being used as a seating area 

 
At the absolute discretion of the Council, the Council retain the right to 
remove the flowers, if required to do so for the reason of good 
maintenance and/or public health and safety. 

  

 

Page 38

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



 

 

 The bench will be recycled plastic as opposed to hardwood 

 

 Any unauthorised benches will be removed. 

 

 The fee is subject to any annual increase in line with the Council’s fees 

and charges. 

 

2.5 The location of the bench must be approved by the Council for all benches on 

Barrow BC land.  The decision by the Council is final.  Any unauthorised 

benches which are installed once the policy is approved will be removed. The 

Cemeteries and Crematorium Manager is the officer who approves the position 

of the bench. 

  

2.6 The customer must complete an application form and pay for the bench before 

ordering.  All benches will be ordered at the end of each month.  The signing of the 

application is formal confirmation of responsibility for the bench for the length of the 

lease.   

 

2.7 Purchase of the bench will be for five years only, after which time it may be 

removed by the Council.  There will be an option to renew the lease if the bench is in 

suitable condition and the view of the Council that it could last another five years.  The 

cost will include the bench, plaque, installation, surfacing and minimal maintenance.  

All repairs and maintenance will be organised through the Council. Under normal 

usage, the bench should present no risk.  Liability cannot be accepted for improper 

use.  The Council cannot guarantee against theft or vandalism and will not be able to 

replace either the bench or the plaque in this event.   

 

2.8 The benches should require minimal maintenance.  

 

2.9 To ensure installation is undertaken safely to the required standards, the 

Council will provide and install the memorial bench with plaque and surfacing in all 

cases.   

 

2.10 At the end of five years customers have the option of purchasing a new 

memorial bench.  (The Council reserve the right to repair/remove benches as 

necessary should they fall into disrepair or are damaged during this period).   

 

2.11 The details of the bench will be entered into the Memorial Register. 

2.12 Although the bench is a memorial it is also for public use.  It must be made clear 

Page 39

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



to the customer when ordering those tributes of any kind cannot be left at the 

bench; any which are left will be removed. 

 

3. Process for getting agreement and paying for a bench 

 

3.1 The process to make an enquiry to purchase a bench and have one installed is 

as follows: 

(i) Customer enquiries about installing a bench are directed to the website 

page to view the guidelines in the policy and to download an application 

form.  An application form can also be posted out if that is easier. 

(ii) Customer completes the application form and must specify where they 

would wish a bench to be installed.  They should also specify what they 

would wish to include on the plaque with a maximum of 70 letters.  This 

form should be emailed back to:    cemetery@barrowbc.gov.uk 

(iii) The requested location for the bench will be considered in consultation 

with the relevant Council departments who will apply the guidelines for 

whether a memorial bench is suitable in this location.  If the requested 

location is not suitable, the nearest alternative location will be offered. 

 

(iv) The Council will ensure that the plaque wording is suitable for use on a 

public bench.   

 

(v) The Council will then contact the customer to confirm or discuss the 

details.  Communication will be by phone or email.  If an alternative 

location is required, a letter with a map to illustrate the alternative site 

will be sent. 

 

(vi) On agreement, a standard agreement letter will be sent to the customer 

to confirm arrangements and request payment.   

 

(vii) When payment is received, the Council will order the bench and arrange 

for installation on arrival. 

 

 

(viii) The Council will ensure that the work is carried out as specified and will 

photograph the bench and ensure that all information is recorded on the 

Barrow BC asset management system for future reference.   

 

(ix) The Council will ensure that a letter and photograph are sent by post or 

email to the customer to notify them that the bench is in place.   

 

(x) When applying for a bench the customer will be informed that planting 

or placing tributes around the bench is not permitted. Any tributes placed 

around the bench will be removed. 

Page 40

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



 

3.2 Although this policy applies to the installation of new memorial benches, 

where existing benches are deemed past their lifespan and are not repairable, 

they will be removed and the new policy for consistency will apply.   

 

 

 

 

4. Seat Specification 

 

4.1 The seat will be in recycled plastic and be 4 feet in width. (See appendix 1) 

The Council will arrange for the seat to be fixed in place at the appropriate 

location. 

 

4.2 The current fee for a memorial seat including a plaque is £680.00.  This fee is 

subject to any annual increase in line with the Council’s fees and charges. 

 

 

5. Policy Review 

 

5.1 This policy will be reviewed every three years.  The next review date is June 

2025.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 1 

 

Page 41

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



 

Page 42

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



Document is Restricted

Page 43

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 51

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Minutes
	8 Council Finances Quarter 2 2022-2023
	9 Risk Management
	Enc. 1 for Risk Management
	Enc. 2 for Risk Management

	10 Memorial Bench Policy
	Memorial Bench Policy Final Jan 2023

	11 Options for Future Stray Dog Service
	Appendix 1


